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1) Financial Summary or performance of the company:

pleased to present the 117™ Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended

The Company"s financial performance for the vear ended 31% March 2025 is summarized below:

 Year ended Year ended
MOMI025 JLnd 2ozl

Hevenue from Operations® (TOTAL HEVAUE) J447T7 J401K
Eamings Before Inerest, Taxes, Depreciation
and Amonization 12195 15727
Less ¢ Fimance Cosi 1456 4845
Less | Depreciation and Amortization Fapernse 7320 HERT
Profit Defore Tax 51N 4292
Less: Tax Expense 0 1]
Profit For the period From continuing
operillons 1518 4192
Profit before tax From discontinued operations il [
Tax expense of discontinued operations 0 o
Profit For the period From discontinued
Optrations ] L1
Profit For the period Artributable to: i 0
Sharchalders of the Company {1 i
Mon Controlling [mierest i 0
Oeher Comprehensive Income (pet ol 1ax) il 1]
Total Comprehensive Income 0 i
Opening balance in Retained Earnings 33443 0151
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR
APPROPRIATION 183620 13443
Dividend - laterim - FY 2024-2% 0 0
Interim - FY 2025-26 I 0
Final- FY 2024-25% 0 0
Final- FY 2023-24 i 1]
Tax on Dividend L] =
Transfer 1o General Reserve 0 ]
Transfer 10 Other Heserve i 0
Closing balance in Retained Earnings 183620 2343

R, In (" Ci)

ﬁm\lthi_'.-'-}..'

{Downfall (%))
0,79%

-11.81%
-0 34%
1.14%
-41.33%

]
14,72%

Ho05%
Ll

=0 =2 2 2 =

0
40 0E

Continued on Page -2



Page - 1

2] COMPANY"S PERFORMANCE REVIEW -

A- Presented in_Hatio annlviis

5l Mo. 2024-25 | 2023-243 Remark
1 Current Ratio 2.30 1.43 Increase In CA due 1o reduction
current liability & increass in
CUrTEnt asset.
o2 Debt. Equity Ratio 0.11 0.95 Decrease in Debt. B Increate in
equity
03 Debt. Service Coverage 0.54 D.28 Increase in ratlo due decrease in
Ratio debt & increase in profit
04, Return on Equity 0.02 0.07 Increase in Profit
05, Inventory Turnover 347 | 341 Fall in this ratio was due to
Increase In stockholding
06, Trade Receivables 11.E9 B.04 Increase In recervables collection
Turncwer Ratio faster than the previous year
o7. Trade Payables Turnover 17.03 17.03 | Changes are due to lower
Ratio Increase In trade payables than
increase In credit purchases
§1,] Net Capital Turnaver 448 7.87 Increase in current assets and
Fatio decrease in current liabilites
09, Wet Profit Ratio 074 1.38 Due to increase in earnings
belore Interest & Tax
10 Return On Capital 0021 oors Increate In net prafit B sales
Employed

B~ DIRECT COMPARISIONS OF KEY COMPOMNENTS OF THE STATE OF AF EAIRSE]F THE COMPANY

i Turnover of Tea — Turnover during the vear 2024-25 was Hs, 32.78 Crorea & during the
year 2003-24 was Ha. 19,27 Crores, which was a Higher than that of last vear due (o
market forces and pilling up of the buyers for product,

iy Net Profit - In 2024-25 s, 25,17 Lakhs & in 2023-24 Hs, 42.92 Lokhs. The difference due
10 efMicient operation of the company.

(I}  Receivables — Recelvables increase from RBs. 166,65 Lakhs (2023-24) to Rs, 202.7% Lakhs
(2024-25) due to increase efficient collection policy & demand of lower credif period buy
buyers

(I¥)  Payables =Non-current Trade Fayables decreased due to arrangement con sldering the
cellection of the funds from Trade Receivables,”

(V) Loans — Borrowings decreased due to faster collection of receivables

(VI) Net worth — Net worth of the com pany has strengibened

(V) Geaeral Financial and non-financial aimosphere tends towards e,

(V1) Workers and management bondings strengthened due (o better management policy.

3) Transfer to reserves

L

b

The Company has transferred revaluation reserve to General Reserve as per the provisions of the
Indian Accounting Standard sdopted during the Financial Year 2017-18. During the year 2024-25
no amount has been transferred to General Reserve from Profit & Loss Ale for the year 2024-15.

flrlitll-l Reserve: During the year the Company reoelved famils fur wprwiling ies bushes & remoning, realignlng
seatisn kughibs roads, drabas, irrigatiss fiyved spsiemin from o Gosvernmest underiakisg for layimg af A% Fipeline and
therealier replanting the busher, digging druins, shade trres, kacheha ruads ete and the same has begn Credited ia
Cupitsl Beserve Ale ssnd the same = ill = appropriated with ibe Yearly deprecistbon of ihe newls planted Besrer Plants
o8 gnmual basis siarileg Frem il year 2024-28 w hich will be capitalired afier 3 yesrs av matured plant ts brarer plant
frem Capial merk progres se su bsequanily utilived in broree planis in ceming vesr. During the year 2024-2% wtilleed
in B 1) 80T ke 001

€) Continued on Page-1
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MVIDEND

Directors do notl recommend div idend due to comprehensive capital capenditure required in coming
years to develop the old tea plantations loss making fields into high yielding fields. The retalned
carnings are shown in annual reports are due to change of sccounting policies ic. due to adoption of
the IND AS, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and other rules framed thereunder.

Material Changes between the date of the Hoard report and end of financial year.

There have been no material changes and commitments, il any, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have sccurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Hetirement by rotation and subsequent re-a proiniment

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Appoiniment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modificationls) or re-cnactment(s) thereof for the time being In force)
and the Articles of Assoclation of the Company, Mr. Shyam Kumar Goel, are lHable to retire by
rotation at the ensuing AGM and being cligible have offered themselves Tor re-appolntment Furiher
Mr. Tansukh Rae Goel reslgned from the office of Director on his own on 19-03-2025 due to age being
over 70 Years as Company was trying for revocation of suspension from CSE.

Num of m 55

(1 Hoard of Director’s Meetings 15 (Fifieen) meetings of the Board of Directors were held
during the financial vear. The details of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company convened during the financial year 2024-25 are piven in the Corponate
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Repor

(i) Audit Committee Meetings © _5 (Five) Meetings_were held during the financial year. The
details of the meetings of the Board of Direciors of the Company convened during the
financial year 2024-25 are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Nomination and Hemunerati . i tings: 02 (Two) Mectings were held
during the financial year, The detalls of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company convened during the financial year 2024-2% are given in the Corporale
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Repon.

(ivi Stakeholders Committee Meetings: 02 (Two) Meeting were held dunng the financial
year. The details of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company convened during
the financial year 2024-25 are given in the Corporate CGiovernance Report which forms pan
of this Annual Repon

(v) Risk Management Committee: 03 (Three) Mecting were held during the financial year
The details of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company convened during the
financial vear 2024-25 are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Annual Report

(iii)

Remuneration of directors. kev managerial personnel and articulars of employvees:
The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing
Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) of re-cractment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
The information required under Section 197 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Companics
(Appoimment and Remuneration of Managerial Personncl) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory
madificationis) of re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being ia force) in respect of Directors’ emplayees of
the Company is not applicable. No remuneration paid in excess of the fimits as per the Act 1o Key
Managerial Personnel. No remuneration was paid to any directors, only sitting fee was paid. Managing
Director was pald remuneration as per the terms of his contract & appointment and according 1o the act.
Continued on Fage = 4
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9 N ti i .
The Company, constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and jts Powers) Rules,
2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee under Section 178(5) of the Companics Act, 2013.
The Committees formulated Nomination and Remuneration Policy as per the Act and Rules,

10) "TORS RESPONSIR 8 MEN
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companles Act, 2013 tincluding amy Hatutory modification(s) or re-
cnactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Directors of the Company confirm that:
a) in the preparation of the annual aceounts for the financial year ended 31" March, 2025, the applicable
Accounting Standards and Schedule 11l of the Companies Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no
material departures from the same: the company follows principles as laid down under IND AS
b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistemly and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 50 as 10 give & true and Fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as a1 31" March, 2025 and of 1he profit and loss of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March, 2025: :
€) proper and sufficient care has been laken for the malmenance of adequale accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other rregularities;
d) the annual accounts have been Prepared on a "going concern” hasis;
€} proper intermal financial controls lald down by the Directors were followed by the Company and tha
such intemmal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; except which are reported by the
auditors are 1o be addressed properly and
f} proper svsiems 10 ensure compliance with the provisions of al| applicable laws were in place and that
such systems are adequate and Operating effectively,

Declaration by Independent Directors

During the year 2024-25 The Company was having 03 (Three) Independent Directors wha were Appointed
during the year 2021-22 under Section 149{4) and Rule 4 of the Companles (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors| Rules, 2014 Independence directors have submitted their independence declaration in
Writings at the time of Appointment and also at the time of attending the board meetings, commities
meetings,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION AND FORFEIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO: A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorplion have not been furnished
considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review,
OR The Information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign
exchange Earnings and Oulgo 25 required under Section 134 (I¥m) of the Companies Ace,
2013 read with Rule B(3) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure
—'A" and is attached 10 this report. H. Foreign Exchange carnings and Outgo Earnings Outgo

L) MANAGEMENT DISC USSION AND ANALYSIS
Management Discussion and Analysis on various board meetings speaks about the overal] industry structure,
global and domestic econamic scenarios, developments in bosiness operations’ performance of the
Company’s various businesses viz., decorative business. international operations, industrial and home
improvement business, internal controls and their adequacy, risk management systems and other materlal
developments during the financial year 202425, The industry situation during the year 2023.24 saw VErY
sensitive trends, somelimes production almast shut down, other times poes up a3 a whole industry in a
month and again in next month production dramatically fallen due 10 seas0nal varants, in few months prices
saw up word trend end then in enother month it saw a quick down word trends. Our company could not
escape that trend bul effect was very minimal. The company could have shown higher profits in this
financial year but sea saw trend prevented It because it was coy pled with late rains In start and also at the

end of the season 2025,
Continoed an Page -5
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12) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFOR]
We believe that an active, well-informed and independent board is necessary 1o ensure the highest standards
of corporaie governance. Al Ranicherra Tea Company Limited, the Board of Direciors (“the Board”) s a1 the
core of our corporale povernance practice. The Board oversees the Management’s functions and protects the
long-term interests of our stakeholders. The dates of the meetings of the Board of Directors ire as set out: -

MEMHBERS MEETINGS:

1) Annual General Meeting for the year 2023-2024 was held on 31/07/2024.

2} Hoard of Directors Mectings: were held on 10/04/2024, 29/0572024, 17-06-2024, 31-07-
2024, 02-08-2024, 12-08-2024, 13-08-2024, 15-09-2024, 18-10-2024, 13-11-2024, 13-12-2024,
15-01-2025, 12-02-2025, 18-03-2028, 19-0)-2025,

3y Avdit Committees Mectings: were held on 100042024, 29/0572024, 1270872024, 13-11-2024,
12-02-2025

4) Nomination and Hemuneration Commitiee: were held on 13-11-2024, 12-02-2025,

§) Stakeholders Committee: was held on 13-11-2024, 12-02-2025

) Risk Management Committee Mectings — 02-08-2024, 13-11-2024, 12-02-2028

The number of meetings shows how actively the directors are showing active participation
In the functioning of the company and maintaining the principles of Corporate Governance
to speak from the front. The active participation of the directors shows that the profit of Rs.
26.17 Lakhs has been generated In spite of decrease of turnover, by ensuring that conlral
procedures are placed properly and checks were working efficiently in respect of cost and
expenditures. All reporting’s and returns were filed on timely and accurate basis.

13) BUSINESS HESPPONSIBILITY REPORT
The each and every stage of the company furnished their efficiency report to their immediate
hicrarchy and finally the summary report is submitted on moathly basis to the board which discusses
on the same every month, The reports are nofl 3 mere report they are discussed, decided and
questioned from the responsible authority. The internal control is functioning actively and control
procedures are placed well to throw oul mechanical response on the functions of the company.

LA) AUDITORS AND AUDITORS" REPORT

Statutory Auditor;
MVs. Khandelwal Hay & Co, Chanered Accountanis (Firm Begistration Mo, 30203 %e), Statutory Auditors of
the Company o continue as Stalutory Audior [or further penod of 3 Years i.e. upio the AGM in which
nccounts for F. Y. 2026-2027 would be adopted by members

The Auditors” Report for the financial year ended 31° March 2025 on the financial statements of the
Company is a part of this Annual Report, The Auditors™ Report for the financial yvear ended 31 March 2025
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR: As per auditors” report, no fraud u/s
143(12) reported by the auditor,
Appolatment of Cost Auditor: Not Applicable 10 1he Company
BOARD'S COMMENT ON THE AUDITORS' REPORT: The observations of the Statutory
Auditors, when resd together with the relevant notes to the accounts and accounting policies
are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comment. OR (Explanation or comment
by the Board on every qualification, reservalion, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the
statutory auditor in his report and/or by the secretarial auditor in the secretarial Audit
Report)

15) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the Annual Return of the Company as on 31 March, 2025 in Form MGT - 9 in accordance
with Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies | Management and Administration)
Hules, 2014, are si ot in the Annesure [H] 1o this report

Continued on Page — 6
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16) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All contracts/arrange mentatransactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were In ordinary
Course of business and at arm's length basis. \I
Druring the year under review, the Company has not entered into any cuntracts’arrangements/transactions
with related parties which qualify as material in accordance with the Policy of the Company on materiality
of related party transactions.
All transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Comminee and are in
accordance with the Policy on Related Party Transactions Formulated by the Company
There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential confliet with interest of
the Company a1 large,

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)- 24

are set oul in Note M to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company,

Form AOQC - 2 purswant 1o Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 82) of
the Compuanics (Accounts) Rules, 2004 s set out inthe Annexure [Cl to this report.

17} LOANS AND INVESTMENTS
Details of loans, guarantees and investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Aet,
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers} Rules, 2014, as on 31* March, 2025, are
sef out In to the Financial Statements of the Company. The company has not accepted any deposit during the
year 2024-25,

18) RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has o well-defined process In place to ensure approprate [dentification and 1reatment of risks
Risk identification excrcise is inter-woven with the annual planning cycle which ensures both regularity and
comprehensiveness. The identification of risks is done at strategic, business, operational and process levels.
While the mitigation plan and actions For risks belonging to strategic, business and key critical operational
risks are driven by senior leadership, For rest of the risks, operating managers drive the conception and
subsequen! avctioning of mitigation plans,
The key strategic, business and eperational risks which are significant In terms of their impac] 1o the overall
objectives of the Company along with status of the mitigation plans are perindically presented and discussad
in the Risk Management Commities (RMC) meetings. Inputs From the RMC are duly incorporated in the
action plans. AH significant risks are well integrated with Functional and business plans and are reviewed on
a regular basis by the senior leadership,
The Company, through its risk management process, aims 1o contain the risks within its risk appetite. There
are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. However, some of the
risks which may pose challenges are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis which Forms part
of this Annual Report,

19) VIGIL MECHANISM

The Whistleblower Policy has been approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in
compliznce with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the
Listing Regulations. Though these regulations are not applicable to the company.

The Company has partially engaged on annual maintenance service a third party For managing an "Ethies
Hotline® through Security System online CAM Systemn monitared by higher level of exccutives, which can
be used by employees and business associnles of the Company to, inter alla, report any instances of financial
irregularities, breach of code of conduct, sbuse of authority, disclosure of financial / price sensitive
information, unethical / unfair sctions conceming company vendors / suppliers, malaise manipulation of
company records, discrimination 10 the Code of Conduct in an ANOTYMOUS IMARRET,

The Policy also provides protection to the emplayees and business associates who report unethical practices
and irregularities.
Any incidents that are reported are investigated and suitable action is taken in line with the Whistle Blower

Policy.

Continoed on Page- 7
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20) FOLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKFPLACE
The Company's Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace ts in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressel) Act, 2013
{Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act) and Rules framed there under, Internal
Complaints Committees have also been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment
The Company conducts sessions for employees across the organization to builld awareness amongst
emplayees about the Policy and the provisions of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women af Workplace
Act
During the financial year 2023-24, No complaints of sexual harassment were received by the Company
The Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment 1o all of its employees and
mssocinles

21) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, Companies (Corporate Social Respansibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentis) thereof for the time being
in force} is not applicable 1o the company.,

Though during the financial year ended 31* March 2025, the Company incurred CSR Expenditure but the
quantum of amount is not classified as the CSR is not applicable to us. The CSR initiatives of the Company
were under the thrust areas of health & hygicne, education, water management and enhancement of
vocational training. These activities were centered in and around the Ranicherra Tea Garden Labour Lines.

22} DETAILS ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
Internal financial control systems of the Company have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with
regard 10 recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable
Accounting Standards
The Company has a well-defined and documented delegation of authority manual with specified limits for
approval of expenditure, both capital and revenue, The Company has a Shared Services Center (S5C) which
centrally handles payments made by the Company, While compliance with the policies are well integrated
with the underlying processes, SSC acts as a second line of Defence to ensure adherence 1o certain laid down
policies,
The Company uses an established Enterprise Risk Management (ERF) system to record day to day
transactions for accounting and financial reporting. The ERP syatem 5 configured to ensure that all
transactions are integrated seamlessly with the underlying books of accounts
The Company periodically conducts physical verification of inventory, fixed assets and cash on hand and
matches them with the books of account Explanations are sought for any virances noticed from the
respective functional heads
The Company has a robust financial closure self-cenification mechanism wherein the parden managers
certify adherence to various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of provisions and other
estimates, There are adequate polices, autherization matrices governing financial transactions and zpprovals,
The Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, These are in accordance with Gene rally Accepted Accounting
Principles In India. Changes in policies, if any, are gpproved by the Audit Commitiee in consultation with
the Statutory Auditors.
The Company in preparing its financial statements makes judgments and estimates based on sound policies
anhd wses external agencies to verify/ validate them ns and when appropriate. The basis of such judgments
and estimutes are also audited by the Statutory Auditors and reviewed by the Board,
For esch major element in the financial statements. the inherent reporting risks have been Identified by the
Company, Confrols have been put to mitigate these risks, These risks and the mitigation controls are
revisited periodically, Corporate accounts function of the Company is actively involved in designing large
process changes as well as valldating changes to [T systema that have a bearing on the books of account
The Company gets its financial statements audited onnually by its Statutory Auditors. The policies 10 ensure
uniform accounting treatment sre prescribed by Company.

Continued on Page - §
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and Safety Standards: Since the company is engaged in manufacture of beverages items the
Company has got licensed with FSSAI regulations and m aintaining the rules and regulations in all
respects and no complaints have been received which is covered under FSSAL Act,
24) 180 _Certification: The Company is certified with 1SO9001:2015 cenificate under IS0
cenification body named as SGS India Pvt Ltd. Based on United Kingdom, it an ISO certification
body. The centification is due for renewal.

25) Disclosure about ESOP and Sweat Equity Share: NO such shares were issued during the
yoar 2024-2025

26) COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES AS ON 31-03-2025::
(a) COMPOSITION OF BOARD:

im MR FRADEEF KUMAR GOEL
UL MR SHYAM KUMAR GOEL
(i MR PERATIE BHANSALL

MANAGING DIRECTORS
DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTONR

(1) MHE. BITSU AGARWALS INOEPENDENT IMRECTOR

v MRS SONAL AGARWAL INDEPESDENT DIRECTOR
(b} COMPOSTTION OF AUDT COMMITTEE:

i SR PRATIR BHANSALL t INDEFENDENT MRECTOM - CHAITRMAN

iy ML BINTT AGARWALA ! INDEFESDENT DIRECTOR = MIEMOER

i MES SONAL AGAHWAL 1 ISDEPESNDEST DIRECTOR = MEMBER

iy MR SHYAM R SR GOk DHHECTOM - M EMDER

i€}

[y

e

SOMINATION AND HESMUSEMATION COMMITTEL:

L] AMES SOMNAL AGARW AL
ity ME FRATIK BHANSALL
iy M BINTE AGARWALY
(1LY ML SHY AM KINM AR GOEL

STARKENGLDERS COMMITTEL:
1] ME BINTU AGARRWALS
L] MHES SUNAL AGAVRWAL

ISDEPESDENT DIRECTOM = C1EAL HM AN
ISDEPESDENT DIHECTOR = MIEMBER
ISDEFESDENT DIHECTOM = MEMBER
HECTOR = MEAMBER

ISDEFENDENT DIRECTOR - CTLATRMAN
INDEFESDEST DIRECTOR - MEMBER

(1T AME FRATIK BHANS AL INDEPEMDENT DIRECTOR — MIEMBER
LAY ME SHYAM KUMAR GOEL THRECTOR - MIEMBER
vy ME PRADEFF KUMAR GOEL MANAGING DINECTORY

STAKEHOLIERS COMMITTEE:
in M BINTU AGCARW ALY

INDEFESDEST HRECTOR = CHALRMAN

LLLE MES SONAL AGAHWAL INDEFEADENT DIRFCTOR - MEMDER
iy ME FRATIR BILANSALD IDEFEMDEST DNUECTON = SMIEMNER
i MR SHYAM KUS AR GOEL CRECTOR = YIEMBER
17} SECHRETARIAL A1 DITREPORT: ATTACHED BELOW THE EXTRACTS OF AUDIT REPORT OF THE

SECRETARIAL AUCITOR BEING THE MEMBER OF the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India. The Company Secretary has examined the following acts and regulations and on that his
report was received by us:-
a) the Securitics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SERI Act™) and the Regulations,

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

b) the Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA™), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, puidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (“SEBI™;

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have
been examined, include: -

() Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 20135;

(b} Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018;

(¢} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and takeovers)

Regulations, 2011,

Continued an Page-9
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{d) Securities and Exchange Roard of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

{€) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based emplovee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,

{f} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Repulations,
2008,

{g) Securities and Exchange Roard of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Conventible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013;

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India { Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 201 5;

(i) other regulations as applicable from time to time, And circulars! puidelines issued thereunder;

Based on report we conclude that no adverse remark was reported by the Secretarial Auditars in their
dralt repori provided.

(28) Board recommendation for passing special resalution Appolntment of Director Mr. Tansukh Rae Goel at
Annual General Meeting who resigned due to his age being above 70 years in view of process of
Listing at Calcutta Stock Exchange due to LODR and Companies Act 2013 Provisions. The chairman
for the Meetings Mr. Shyam Kumar Goel, has informed the Board that vast the experience of
Shri Tansukh Rae Goel is necessary for the company in many respect such proposing various
ideas of the challenges with the board during the course of Board Meetings, scrutinizing the
performance of the Company during the board meetings and for that he added in the agenda
of board meeting Board to consider pass unanimous resolution to recommend the Members to
pass Special Resolution in the 118" Annual General Meeting, to appoint Shri Tansukh Rae as
Non-Executive Director of the Company .

) SCLMSLUHES
a, During the year under review, 1he Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections
73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Hules, 2014
(including any statutory modificationds) or reenactments) thereof for the time being in force);
b. The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India on Meetings of the Board of [Nrectors and General Meetings;
€. There are no signiflcam material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
poing concern status of the Company and [1s operations in future,
d. The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo as stipulated under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Accounts)
Rules, 20104, is set out in the Annexure [A] to this report;
e. The Managing Director & CEO of the Company has not received any remuneratlon or commission from
any of Companies subsidiary;
f. None of the Awditors of the Company have reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of
Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 {including anv stabulory modification{s) of re-enaciment(s)
thereof for the time being in force];
g The Company does not have any scheme or provision of maney for the purchase of its own shares by
employees’ Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees Directors; and
h. The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise

Continued on Page - 10
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The Board of Directors place on record sincere gratitude and appreciation for all the emplovees ot all levels
for their hard work. solldarity, cooperation and dedication during the year.
The Board conveys its appreciation for its customers, sharcholders, suppliers as well as vendors, bankers,
business associates, regulatory and government authorities for their continued support.

For and an behalf of the Board For and on behalf of the Board
RANICHERRA TEA CO. LTD.
o N S Lu._1 ..;..lr"""'r? P e
Directar
Shyam Kumar Goel Pradeep Kumar Goel
[Virector Managing Director
(DN No. DORIES]6) (DN Mo, MIYINETES)

Place: Maselli
Date: 290572025



ANNEXUAE —A

Infermation under Section 134{3)(m] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule B|3) the Companies |Accounts]
Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Report of the Directors

[A) Conservation of energy-
(1) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL
{il]) the steps taken by the company for vtilizing afternate sources of energy. NiL
{ili) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: NIL
(B) Technology abiorpton-
(i) the efforts made towards technaology absorption: NIL

(i) the benefits derived like product Improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitutlon: NiL

{iii} In case of iImported technology {imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year}- : NiL

(i) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-
There was no foreign transaction and outgo during the year 2024-25 and 2023-2024.

For and on behalf of the Board For and on behalfl of the Board
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Shyam Kumar Goel Pradeep Kumar Giwl
Director Managing Director
(DN No, BORIRRLG) ([N No. OORISSTS)

Flace: Mutelli

Ihate: 20052025



1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

ANNEXLHE-B
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2025

Pursuant to Section 92 [3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

[(Management & Adminlstration) Rules, 2014,

1.| €N 101132WB1908PLCO01893
1 | Registration Date 22712/1908
3| Name of the Company rmrmtmnuﬁm’uumn |
4| Category/Sub-category of  MANUFACTURING
the Com=pary
5 | Address of the Registered Immmnm,mrmunwmmmi-mm

alfice & contact details

'rmm-.mm-:mu

& | Whether listed company [

7. | Name. Address & centact PAAHESW AR DATAMATICS PAT LTD EOUCATA WEST BENGAL
details of the Registrar & ' .
Transler Agent, if say,

1l. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (AL the business actvities contributing 10
%, or more of the total armover of the company shall be stated)

5. Mo MName and Description of main NIC Code of the % 1o total turnover of the company
products / servioe Product/servioe

1 TEA AND TEA LEAVES FLE T w7

2

3

1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SURSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
All the business activities contributing 10 % or morg of the total turnover of the

company shall b& stated:-

| 51, Ha. I':r-d,,m;-a nd Dgy;;'l.'ptlnﬂ of main | NIC Code of the
products / services Prodect)
sEryice
|
' A , A

o to total Lurmover of |
the company




on 31-March-2024)

| Ko, of Shares held a1 the beginning of the year{As

Ko of Shares held at the end of the
year[As on ¥1-March-2025]

[Cemat Physical

Total ol
Tital

| Shares

PFhysic
al

Tatal | % of Total
i Shares

duning
the yrar

A Promoter s

(L] Indian

a) Individualy
HLF

1540000

15400000

ul

B} Central Gavt

] State Govt 1)

d} Badies Corp.

G100 a

o) Banks f A

) Any other

Total shareholding
of Promoter (A)

:mﬁq’ o

L Fuldic
Shareholding

L Institutions

) Mutual Funds

b) Ranks / 11

€] Central Gawt

d) State Gova(s)

€] Venture
Capital Funds

) lasurance
Companies

E} Fils

b} Ferelgn
Venture Capital
Fandy

i) Others




[=pecify)

Sub-total
1)

2. Mo
Instliutions

a|| Hedes Corp.

i) tnadlan

#5943  E5a1

03285 o

i) Cwverseas

B] Individualy

i} tmdividaal
shareholders
helding nomina|
slsare capital upio
Ha I lakh

13000 15664

o 90

W) Indlviduaal
sharehalders
haolding nominal
share capital o
excess of s 1 lakh

1016470

S00 101687

393142

¢} Others
(#pecify]

Non Resident
Izdlang

Dversras

Corporale
Bodled

Forelgn
Madonals

Clearing
Members

Trusty

Fareign Bodies - D
R

@l el

Sub-folal
(mpgaj:-

1018810

650" 1053717

Total Public
Shareholding
(8)=(8)(1)+
B[]

C Shares held
by Cuslodian far
SGORS & ADRS

I-IH 1y

Grand Total
[A+R+C)

Lﬁﬁlﬂlﬂ

17080 2600000




FYTLTD

B) Sharehalding of Prometer-
SN | Sharehnlder's Sharehalding al the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year B changs [n
Hame yiar sharebalding
Ha. ol %oltotal | %hof Shares Ko of % of totad Bcf Shares Shor g M oy
Shares Sharesof | Pledged / Shares Shares of the Fledged
Lhe encumbered 1o Eoimpany encumbered to
company | total shares total shares
1  [TAMSUWH RAE GDEL | Se0000 20.7692 a 54000 076D
2 PRADEER KUMAR §0000c] mni F u:moi 19 2304
OEL
1 [EHYAMEUMAR GOEL 500000 19.2304 a @ﬁ 197308
4 [GDELPLANTATIONS &1 0.2 R a 6107 0234




C) Change In Promotery’ Sharchalding (please specily, l there ls nochange] 80 CHANCE

SX | Particelars Shureholding at the | Cumulative Shurebolding
beginning of the year during the yrar
Mo of % of total Mo of 5 of tokal
whiFes shares of the shares shares of the
company rompany
At the beginning ef the year L] o o} v}
Date wise Inctease [ Deorwase |n Promoiers A, W& LA N
Sharehalding during the yrar spedifying the
rexsasi for incTease
J decrease (eg allotment ftransfer / bonus/
sweal egulty ric):
At b end of the year [1] o o ]
D) Sharehalding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN | For Each of the Top 10 Sharehclding at the Cumulative Skareholding
Shareholders beglnning during the year
| of the year |
Mo, of shares] % of total | Mo of & of total
vhares of the iharet ahared of the
| company COMmpany
Al the beginning of the year W0I7Ezl | 385316 | 107N 135316
Date wise Increase / Decreaso in Promolers | ' I
Shareholding during the year specifying the | ‘
reasons fof lacreass
Jdecrease (pg allowment [/ tansfer | hanwus) - - | sl -
wwrat exuiiy eic)
|
| At the end of the year o wasn | 39sME | loa7eal | J9sNe
) Shareholding of Direciors and Key Managerial Personnel:
N | Sharebolding ef each Directors and each Shareholding at the Cumslative Shareholding
Key Managerial Personnel beginning during the yvar
|oftheyear R
| Moual 1 of tovtal Ho of | %% of total shares of
shares shares of the | shares [ company
LComp
A the beglnning of the year ' |
1] TANSUKH RAE GOEL = DHR. - 540000
2] PRADEEP KUMAR GOEL-M[-500000 1540000 59 7308 1540000 592508
3) SHYAM KUMAH GOFL - DIR- S00000 !
" Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding |
durieg the year specfpng the reasons for
increase flecrease (og allotment [ transfer
J bonus/ sweat equity etc) Mr. Tanaskh Hae 540000 o TEA2 £40000 70,7653
|| mesgned duetmage >70 YRS el
T Avthe end of the year Todboos | E4A16 1000000 302616




V] IKDEBTEDNESS - Ind ebtedeess of the Company including interest ouistanding/acorued bot not dee for payment

Secured Loans
14 Iudl-n' Unaecured ngpmm Total
deposits Loans Indebtedness
Iadebiedness at the beginning of the
financial year
1} Prineigral Amourt 247080 a o | seraroaD
ii] Interest due bet not paid o (1] ] 4]
11} lnterest accrued But Aot dus b L b 0
Total (1= 1l i) SETATOED 1] o LLIATDAD
Change in Indebtedness during the 0 0
financlsl year
® Additlan 1] a
* Rsdecton JISTISES i) 1571485
Net Change -3A57248% ] -F35T148%
Indebtedness at the enid of the
financial year
] Principal Amount 116T&835 (¥] o ITETR495
il} Interest d we but not pald (Since Paid) o £} O 1}
18] Interesd aocrwed But nol diss o 4] o L1}
Tostal 1+ 1+ 110} JIET4455 | o ] JIETHGS
V9L REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERLAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director. Whate-tlme Directors aadfor Manager:
5N Parttculars of Bemuneration Name af MD/WTD/ Manager E Total Amount
PRADEEP r— -_—
KUMAR
LDEL MO
1 Grois salary 1200000 ha L MA 1200000
{8} Salary as per provislons contained a a g g
In sectien 17 1) of the [npome tax Act,
1561
[b] Value of perguisites u/s 17(2) a a 2 2
Income-tax Act, 1961
© Profits in llew of salary under secuon 17(3) 2 @ 0 o
Inrome- tw Act, 1961
2 Stock Opton ° 0
i Sweat Equity o
4 Cammitsian 1] o L]
as % of profit
= others, specify—
5 Cthers. please spenfy 1] 1] o a
Taal (A) 1200000 130000d
Ceiling a3 per the Act




B.Remuneration o ather direciors

N i Particulars of Remunsratian Mame of Directors Towml Amount Es.
1 | Indepensdent Directory M. I'ratik Mr, Bty | Mra Senal
Bhapsali Aparwaly Agarwal
Fee for agending board BO00T BOOOD EC0O0 Rx 240000
contmities mestings
Commission
Dhere, pleasa speafy
Tobal [1) Q000 BOOD0 BCO00 Rx. 280000
i Other Soo-Executive Mrectors M. Tansukh | Mr, Pradeep | Mr. Sryam
Bae Goel | Kumar Goel | Kumar Gosl
]
Fea for attending board 75000 a BOOC] B5 155000
Commities meetings
Commistion
Diherw please specify
Total (2] THO00 o B0000 Ru 135000
Tatal [Bj={1+1) RS 155000
Tatal Managerlal MA | A WA RS 1595000
emuneration
Owerall Celling as per the A
C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MO/MANAGER/WTD
oN | Partbculars of Remunerstion Key Managerial Personnel
CED L CFo Tatal
1 Grosy saliry 5] 120000 a a
{4} Salary as per provisions contaleed in section 1] Q a a
17[1) ef the Income-ti Act 1961
(b)) Value of perguisites u/s 17(2] Income- tax Act, o o o o
1951
(c) Profits in Ueu af salary under section 17(3) Q a ] ]
Income-tax Ack, 1961
Stock Optian Q2 a 2 a
Sweal Equlty 1] L] 1] Q
Ll Commisgan o [+ a L]
= A5 % of prafit b o o o
others. specify .. ] g o o
5 Others, please specily o o i il
Tatal o 110000 a 0




VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Details of Authority Appeal maide,
Companies Act | Description | Penalty / |[RD f NCLT/ ifany [give
Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A COMPANY
Penalty i o 0 Q
Punishment 0 0 0 a
Compounding o o o 0
B. MRECTORS
Penaley 1] o ] a
Punithment 0 0 0 0
Compounding V] o i o
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Q 1] ] o
Punishment 0 0 o i
Compounding a o ] o

For and on behalf of the Board

\ANICHERRA TEA CD.LTD,
- b aa |
Director

Shyam Kumar Goel
Director

(DN Mo, ODKISS16)
Mace: Matelli

Date: 20052025

For and on behalf of the Board
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Pradeep Kumar Goel
o Director
(DIN No. DORIENTS)




ANNEXURE - €
Related Party Transactions:

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section {1) of section 188 in the
form ADQC-2:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and
were in the ordinary course of business.

Fursuant to clouse (h) of sub-section (3] of section 134 of the Act ond Rule B(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements of transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basls;

“Hm-[tj of the related | Nature of  Duration of the | Salient terms of ﬂl‘l.‘l'{ll of | Amounts
| party and nature of | contractsfarrangementftr | contracts ! i the contracts er | approwal by {Rs.}
| relationship anactions arrangements) | afrangements or | the Board, if
[ transactions transactlons any: |
| incleding  the
| viklue, if any: |
M5 Goel Paristons Pat | Purchane Up1a 31032025 | Contract as per 10/04/7004 | 16432945
Lia reguirement and
pwmlabilivy a1
Gaden
M3 Goel Constructon | Purchase Upto 33032015 | Contract as per 10/04/2024 E4B5137 |
Co regpuiremert and
Sales svadability ot 1THBAGT
|
Rental Income Gaedan 127443
Works Contrac Paymeni 1ER3ADEE
"B D Traders (Frop. M | Purchasa Up ta 31-03-2025 | Contract as per 10/42004 | 175000 |
B D Goal) reguiremien end
wanlatilivy at
Garden
Garsen Suppiers (Prop | Contract works Upto 31033005 | Costractasper | 10/04/2024 872500 |
W K Goel) irpwrenent amd
Brokesage Paymest svadability st 20400
I Gargen |
M. P K Goel MO Remuneratan | Upio31-03-2015 | Contract as per 107047024 1200000 |
FEguremen and
wemlability ot
Garden
M 5 K Gool Purchasas Upto 31032005 | Comtractasper | 10/04/2024 4B0000
reguirement and
Sithng Fea of Mestrgs awadability ot BO00a
Gardan

M T R. Goel | Purchasas Upto 31.00.2005 | Contract a5 per 10/02/7024 32500
TR el
Sifling Fes of MeeSngs wvalabslity at THom




r

| | Gdrden
‘TR Gosl & Olners (HUF] | Gaies | Upto 31-03-7005 | Contract as per 107542024 SHTE00
requiramesnt arg
Wicees Contract Sability ot $10200
| - |
5 K Goel & Others (HUF) | Eaies | Upto 13002038 | Camran Mper | 10/43004 | T3EEE]
TEQUIrément and
Wons Cortract availability at | TBOBIY
Girder
(P K Gosl & Ofers (HUF] | Saies o Up to 11 033025 | Contractasper | 30/0H73074 | 192500 |
FRguitement snd
Woks Contract availability 1 | GORGTY
Garder
| Pradeep Construciion | Contract Works | st 11084075 | Conrant 5 per 10/04/2004 1 NL |
FESETEIMErs g
Purchasaes availability at | NIL
Garder
R kil |
Docars kng Tea Pvilie | Purchase | Up 01030025 | Comtract ap per o/oaf0ze | LT
RS e e
| awidasiliy at |
| Gardan
M. Sonaal Gosl Salary Up 10 31-03-2025 | Costract as per 10y/0ar 1024 Wil |
FRGaEr e Al g
Purchases | avallebility at MNiL ’
Camrgagn
| |
M3 Salones Gosl Sales Veta 31-03-2015 | Contract as per 10,74, 7024 MIL
e el ard
Works Contract | ovLabiTy at NIL
Gargan
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For and on behalf of the Board

iy & T I— La. |

Shyam Kumar Goel
Director

(DN No, 00SI8816)
Flace: Matelli

Date: 219/057025

For and on behalf of the Board

_--"'r.l--'-‘"_-" Pl i

Pradeep Kumar {ocl
| Director
(DN No, DOKIRSTS)



KHANDELWAL RAY & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Phone : 2243-8018

E-mail : khand.ray@hotmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Ranicherra Tea Company Limited(“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31%'March, 2025 and loss for the year, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on

that date.

Basis for.Qualified Opinion

(a) Accrued Liability on Account of Gratuity and Leave Encashment liabilities as on 31t March
2025 has neither been provided nor ascertained as required in Ind AS 19.

(b) Impairment of Assets has not been recognized pending assessment of loss as required under
Ind AS 36.

(c) Leasehold land: The company has not ascertained the lease premium paid as required under
Ind AS 17.Registration Completed.

(d) Computation on account of Deferred Tax has not been done as required under Ind AS 12.

(e) Balances with Trade receivables, Trade payables, Loans and Advances remain unconfirmed by
the respective parties

(f)  No provision has been made for doubtful debts amounting to Rs 253925/-

(g) Balances with Banks in current accounts amounting to Rs 72934/(refer note no. 9) remain
unconfirmed by the respective Banks.

15/15, SARSOONA BANERJEE PARA ROAD
SARSOONA, KOLKATA - 700 061
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the FinancialStatements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. However we have
nothing to report in this regard.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other.information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of theseFinancial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
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preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonableassurance is a high label of assurance, but is
no a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs with always detect a material
misstatement when it exist. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and the considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionalscepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.




b)

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure - A,
a statement on the matters specified in the said Order, to the extent applicable to the Company.

ii)As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that

We have sought and, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.




d)

e)

8)

h)

ii)

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
in our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31 March, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Director is disqualified as on 31 March, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure
-B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with amended
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position, wherever
ascertainable — Refer Note No. 33 (1)

The Cbmpany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there was
any material foreseeable loss.

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall :
o directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parities or
e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity including foreign entity, (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;




c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub
clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any material misstatement.

i. Based on our examinations, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
through the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit feature being tampered
with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

For Khandelwal Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 302035E

dbpera B3 g

Place: Kolkata Dipankar Biswas

Partner

(Membership No. 050821)
UDIN : 25050821BMUOXL4519

Date:  29™ May 2025




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date in respect to Statutory Audit of The Ranicherra Tea Company
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2025)

We report that:

i)

i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The company is not required to maintain proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets as it does not intangible assets.

There is a regular program of physical verification of the Property, Plant and
Equipment by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of Property, Plant and
Equipment. No material discrepancies or discrepancies of 10% or more have
been noticed in respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment physically
verified during the year as compared to book records.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year and, therefore no
material change in net carrying value due to revaluation in any each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets is required to be reported.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company does not hold
any benami property & therefore there have not been any proceedings
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made there under. Hence no reporting is required.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at periodical intervals

during the year by the management and in our opinion the coverage and
procedure & frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies or
discrepancies of 10% or more were noticed on physical verification of
inventories as compared to the book records.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 7.50 crores

in aggregate from HDFC Bank and on the basis of security of current assets.
According to the information and explanation given to us, the monthly
returns or statements filed by the company with such HDFC Bank are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company and no material
discrepancies were noticed on verification of the documents as compared
to the book records




iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly the
provisions of paragraph3(iii)(a),3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e), 3(iii)(f)of the order
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(v)(a),3(v)(b)and 3(v)(c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

The clause relating to the maintenance of cost records u/s 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, goods and service
tax, customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, there are no
dues of income tax, wealth tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, which has not been deposited on account of any dispute except in the
following cases which has been stated below:

(b)

Peri :
" ¢ sheeatiit Nature of [Amount(Rupee et::(;dato Wh'tCh Fodr,“m Where
ame of the Statute dues s in Lakhs) moun lsput'e is

relates pending
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Assessment Commissi
Income Tax Act Agricultural 0.52 Year 1991-92 |-© m.SSIoner
of Agricultural
Income Tax
Range -1
Kolkata




viii)

ix)

x)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

~—

(e)

(f)

There has not been any transactions not recorded by Company in the books
of account and therefore there have been no cases of surrendered or
disclosed transaction as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). So previously there were no
income that has not been recorded properly in the books of account during
the relevant year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other

Borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has applied all the term loans for the purpose for which the loans
were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, no funds
raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence this
part of the clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies because the
company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Neither
the company has raised such loans nor there was any default.

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and therefore compliance of the requirements of section 42
and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not required.
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xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xvi)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no
whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. So 3 (xii)(a), 3 (xii) (b)&3 (xii)(c)are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

b) We have considered the report of Internal Audit issued for the period under
audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them.,

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b), are not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance

activity during the year.

c) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course
of audit, the Group [as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions 2016] does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable.

xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

Xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on

the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing -~
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one yﬁai;(,-'\“"
/S

from the balance sheet date.




xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee
under section 135(1) or spent money for CSR under section 135(5) of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order is not applicable.

xxi) The company was not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements as
Company does not have any Subsidiary or associate or joint venture and therefore
this clause is not applicable to the Company.

For Khandelwal Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 302035E

Place: Kolkata Dipankar Bisg
Partner
Date:  29'" May 2025 (Membership No. 050821)

UDIN : 25050821BMUOXLA519
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
The Ranicherra Tea Co Ltd (“the Company") as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements,
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Khandelwal Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 302035E

Mbeerier 73 p 972

Dipankar Biswas
Partner

(Membership No. 050821)
UDIN : 25050821BMUOXL4519

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29" May 2025
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NANICHERNA TEA COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss far the yaar andad 31t March,2025
ml__ ns. In Thousands -
e NoteNo | INDAS 3ist NDAS 3
P March 2025 | March 2012
o:;’QI\UQ From Operations m 340165.06 310286.05
7 Operating revenue 211.01 2911.80
Other | 2 §20.28
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RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED
NOTE: 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

A Significant Accounting Policies

1. Company Overview

Ranicherra Tea Company Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Company was incorporated on 22" December, 1908
Under the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office at Kolkata, West Bengal.
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange. The
Company is engaged in the activities of Cultivation, Manufacture and Soil of Bulk
Tea.

2. Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013
(the Act) and the other relevant provision of the Act and Rules made there under.
The finandal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 were the First
Finandal Statements of the Company under Ind AS.

3. Basis of Measurement

The financial statement has been prepared on a historical cost basis except
certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value and
Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants, which are measured at fair value less

cost to sell.




4.  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires
management to use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. It
also requires Management to exercise judgment in the process of applying
accounting policles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These
estimates, judgments, assumptions affect application of the accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditure, contingent
liabllities etc.

S. Classification as current and non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind As | -
Presentation of financial statements and schedule Ill to the companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and equivalents, the company has
ascertained its operating period as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-
current classification of assets and liabilities

6. Property, Plant and Equipment

6.1. Tangible Assets ( Other than Bearer Plants)

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost / deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any cost Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount for recognized as 3
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and




maintenance are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss durirg =& i
period in which they are incurred.

An asset carrying amount is written down immediately to i reversdie ITOUT
If the assets carrying amount is greater then R esgmated recoverscie 3—OUT
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, mlert arc SouIDTET S
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upan dsoosa O ame"
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the cordred S I
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposzl ac ren‘rer-e" ar reSrereT &
item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined s the difterencs secwesn

the sales proceeds and carrying amaount of the asset and is recogized ™ oo°c
and loss.

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depredated in = meamrer Ta<
amortizes the cost of the assets less its residual value, aver thelr issfd ™es o™ =
straight line basis. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as specTied = Scecue
Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives, residuz! vzlues znd depredzton methad == = doass
at the end of each reporting periad and the effect of any changes naS—== %
accounted for on a prospective basis.

6.2 Bearer Plants

Bearer Plants comprising of mature tea bushes and shade tess sre s a0
/ deemed cost less accumulated depredation lossss, if any.

The cost of uprooting of old tea bushes, rehabilitstion of lend. reniantng 3ne
young tea upkeep and maintenance up to the year 3 from the year of pansn
capitalized as mature plants, capital work-in-progress. From ve3- & amaamcs
capital work-in-progress is treated as Bearer Piants and deprediated usng s
line method over the expected useful life of 70 years. when the Bezrer D3

reaches maturity stage with no residual value.

/\q:ﬁ

19>~
¥/

>

e




Depreciation on Bearer Plants is recognized so as to write of its cost over useful
lives of the plant, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimated for on a prospective
basis.

7. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of insurance claim for damage /

shortage of finished goods and are net of sales return, sales tax / value added tax,
GST and trade allowances.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company
and significant risk and reward incidental to sale of products is transferred to the
buyer except the following items :

a) Interest on other deposits.

b) Insurance claim & Motor Vehicle Road Tax

c) Bonus & LTA for senior executive and other staff

d) Interest on Govt. Dues for delayed payment.
The a2bove items are accounted for on cash basis.

7.1 Employee Benefit: Liabilities on account of gratuity & leave encashment
payable to employees on retirement are not provided in accounts and the
payments are accounted on cash basis.

7.2 Revenue Recognition of Income and Expenditure:

items of Income and Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis except for
the following which are, as per practice, accounted for on cash basis

a) Interest on Other Deposits,
b) Insurance claims.& Motor Vehicle Road tax



¢) Bonus & LTA for sonlor executives snd other staff,
d) Interest on Govt, Dues for dulayad payment,

8. Elnanclol Instrumants

Financlal assets and financisl liabiltles are recognized vihen the Comgany
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument 2nd sre
Initlally measured at falr value, Transaction costs that are directly attributsble to
the acquisition or Issues of financlal assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assats and financlal liabllitles measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition
of financlal assets or financlal liabllities. Purchase or sale of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
conventlon In the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date .e. the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the 3seet,

9. Flnanclal Assets

Recognition and Classification

The financlal assets are classified at initial recognition in the following
measurement categories as:

eThose subsequently measured at amortized cost.

eThose to be subsequently measured at fair value [either through other
comprehensive income (OCl), or through profit or loss]

Subsequent Measurement

eFinanclal assets measured at amortized cost ~ Financial assets which are held
within the business model of collection of contractual cash flows and where those
cash flows represent payments solely towards principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on 2
financial asset that is measured at amortized cost is not a part of hedging

P e L




relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized or
impaired.

eFinancial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income -
Financial assets that are held within a business model of collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling and where the assets cash flow represents solely
Payment of principal and interest on the principle amount outstanding are
measured at fair value through OCI. Movements in carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for recognition of impairment gains or losses. When a
financial asset, other than investment in equity instrument, is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to
statement of profit and loss.

Classification of equity instruments, not being investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, depend on whether the Company has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through OCI. When investment in such equity instrument
is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses recognized in OCl is transferred
within equity on such derecognition.

e Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss - Financial assets
are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition. Movements in fair value of these instruments are taken in profit and
loss. The equity instruments in Subsidiary, Associates and its arrangements are
valued at cost.

9.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or
a group of financial assets to be impaired. Impairment losses are recognized in the
profit or loss (other than impairment losses on investment in subsidiary, Joint
Venture and associate) where there is an objective evidence of impairment based
on reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. For all financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an




Atount equal to the 12 months expectd credit losses or at an amount equal to
the life time expected credit losses of the credit risk on the financlal asset has
Inereased significantly since Intial recognition. The Company recognizes loss
allowance on trade recelvables when there Is- objective evidence that the
Commnv Wil not be able to collect the entire due amount depending on product
categories and the payment mechanism prevalling In the industry.

9.2 Income recognition on financlal assets

Interest income from financlal assets Is recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest rate method, where applicable.

Dividend income is recognized In profit or loss only when the Company'’s right to
receive payments is established and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably,

9.3 Derecognition of financlal assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are derecognized when the right to receive benefits have expired
or been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of such financlal asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized
when the liability is extinguished that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

9.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and llabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there s an intension to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

10 Government Grants

Grants from the Government are recognized at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will
comply with all attached conditions.




Government grants relating to Income are doforred and recognized In th
Statement of Profit and Loss over the perlod nocessary to match thom with the
costs that they are Intended to compensate and presented within othor Income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment aro
Included In non-current llnbllities as doferred Income and transfer to the
statement of Profit or Loss on a stralght lina basls over the usoful life of the
related assets and presented within other Income.

1. lncome Tox

The Income Tax expense or credits for the period Is the tax payable on the current
year's taxable Income based on the applicable Income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabllities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.

The current Income tax charge Is calculated on the basls of the tax laws enacted
on substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax comprises of expected
tax payable or recelvable on taxable income / loss for the year or any adjustment
or receivable in respect of previous year.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases used In the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary difference to. the extent that it is possible that taxable
profits will be avallable against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such tax assets and liabilities are not recognized If the temporary
differencé arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities is a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.




Cwient and dotenen VAN A tengnieed (n profit o low, except when they relate
T e that ane 1w AR Y O conpeshenaive (ncame or dicectly I squity,
WUOAWRIR e e ot and dofered o are b ecogniiel n-othe
S e hensive eome o il BV I equity tospectively,

20 lnventorles

Moek ot tinished goods s valued at lower of cost and net reallzable value,
Hvished goods, Mmaduced trom agricaltural produce viz, Mack Vea, v valued at
Kower of cost anrived al by adding the cost of converslon to the talr value of
agricultural produce vie, Green leaves and the net realleable value,

Raw Materials purchased (Including Bought Leaves) and Stores and Spare Parts
A \alued at or under cost, Work-in Progress s valued at cost,

Pravision is made for obsolete, slow moving and detective Inventorles, wherever
necassary and reviewed om time to tne,

Costs are ascertained to the individual ltem of nventory by adopting welghted
average method, Net reallzable value Is the estimated selling price for Inventorles
less all selling costs,

13, Blological Assets

Biological Assets of the Company comprises of un-harvested Green Toa Leavos.
These are recognized as such when and only when, (a) the Company controls the
assets as a result of past events, (b) it Is possible that future economic bonefits
associated with such assets will tlow to the Company and (c) the falr value or cost
of assets can be measured reliably. These assets ave measured at Its falr value loss
cost to sell. The gain or loss arising from change in such value Is Included In
Statement of Profit and Loss,

14, Leases

The Garden Land is on perpetual lease basis and the yearly lease rent charged to
statement of profit and loss account.




15, Borrowlng Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and transactions costs incurred in connection
Wwith the borrowing of funds,

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of
Qualifying assets or for self-create assets (i.e an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a

part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of Profit and Loss.

16. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be
confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
- present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of the obligation'cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources s considered
remote.



RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITEO

NOTE 12
STATEMENT OF CHANGY, IN FAUITY VOR TISE, PERIOD EXDEL 3I8T MARCH, 215
A. LQUITY SAHARE, CAPITAL Ka e Thmizads
S No
Particulars Nos Balance
I [Malance sant Jof April, 2024 P77 L] 244500 19
less Calln 1n arean n e
Change in Iiquity Share Capital dunng the yea 4 01
I _IBslance na at 3101 Mareh, 2028 2600000 | 26019
“STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(1) Current reporting period
Balance at the beinning of the |Changes In _ |Restated Changesin | Balance at the end of the
current reporting pertod Equity Share (balance atthe |equity share| current reporting period
Capital due to |beginningof  |capital
prior perfod  |the current during the
errors |reporting currem year
period
26000 0 26000 0 26000
(2) Previous reporting perfod
Balance at the beinning of the [Changes In Restated Changesin | Balance at the end of the
previous reporting period Equity Share |balance atthe (equity share| previous reporting period
Capital due to |beginningof |capital
prior perlod  (the Previous  (during the
errors reporting previous
period year
26000 0 26000 0 26000
B.OTHER EQUITY Rs.in Thousands
(i) Current Reporting Period
SI. Particulars Share Equity Reserve and Surplus [Items of OCI| Total
N Application | Component of
o Money Compound Security Retained Equity
Pending Financial Premium | Earnings Instruments
Allotment | Instruments & | Account through Other
Capital CP:""*"“
Reserves S
Balance as at 31st March,
] |2024 0 143.44 | 33300.95 (135)] 33443.04
Transferred to General
Reserve 0.00
Profi/ (Loss) for the year 2517.84 0| 2517.84
Other Comprehensive Income
for the ycar 0 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year 25117.84 0 2517.84
Capital Reserve 147656.99 147658.99
Balance as at 31st March,
Iv (2015 147658.99 143.44 | 35818.19 (135)[ 183619.87
Ve 1 1\,




W Previous Reportiug Period

tal
SL Purticulars Share Equity Reserve and Surplus (Items of OCI| To
N
Application | Component of 0
No Money Compound [ Security | Retalned m:-::umr:' .
Pending | Financlal | Premium | Earnings through Other
Allotment | Instruments & [ Account Cprehensive
Capltal Income
Reserves
\ ;::‘lm s at Mist March, 1044 | 2900902 (1.35)[ 2915111
-—___
Traasfereed to Geaeral 0.00
Reserve 0| 4291.93
PV (1 oss) R the your 219193
Othet Conprehensive Income 0.00 0.00
N the year :
Total Comprehensive lncome 4291.93 0] 429193
[for the vear - 0.00
Cupital Reserve 0
laoce av atIist March,
N (2034 ‘ 0 143.44 |  33300.95 (1.35)]  33443.04




RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED

NoteTo the financial statement for the vear endad 315t March, 2025

3. Property, Plant & Bquipment

1, 1 Thousanils
oss IO TITIATION i TTncesvar
Ualanceason]  Adilition] Deduction/]Suhitdy Tolance axal] Nalance as on] Tor e yeat] Deductio]  ialance an ol ""]""“’."'."' d '"": "; “‘
142024 during] ndjvsunent Jrecelven aaam 142004 o Akl AA028] a0
dudng the]  during the|fom Yea Adjustime
PARTICULARS| yenl year|hoard 1t dueing
Ahve yonr
A. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Leasehold Jand 1660.03/ 0,00 0.00, 1640.00 A0, 66A0 A 101,61 (0200
Bearer Plant 41974.09 6500.47 0.0 ANSKL50 20570.72 had.) FRRLEL! Mo 21400,37
Bullding 75559.23] 1379046 | WYASILOY V25215 190192 £1244.07 RIIRERIY] 26:007,00
Plent & Machincrics 76403.02 170071 7640.7) B171.00 AL06]) 625,00 299,00 144707 2477002
Conputer 2093.59| 10,90 124y 177040 75.07 TGS 164,94 Jant
Furniture & Fixtures 2642.83 0.00] 6420 PRYTRY] 1490 206447 LNLIA RIEN T
Vehicles 17605.92 0.00 17308.92 13431.00/ L1ENY1  TUTXT) 14117.02 KIING) 417412
Office Equipments 12621 0.00 12021 61.00 10,72 AN 54,40 A5.16
Water Supply 365,25, 50.62 LYRAY RLTAK 192 WA 112,22 (742
Irrigation 27101.16] 15002 1 12045 100,27 19200.72 1080,96] 927041
TOTAL A 245612.03 X 0.00] 20 Yol azad] ealoo] T tead0Za0] Tosedu61]  ono(7.00
| PREVIOUS YEAR| _ 300061.62] 1uS21.40] u175u99f 000] " 245612.03]_151006.106] _ 6RUWTY O00]  (RTEVANG N0 17.00] 1570040
Relevant Ing ltem In the Balance Sheot Oescription of ltem of | Grogs carrylig | Yitle doad held | Whather titla deed holdar Is o promoter, | Property hald | Nesson fur
Proporty value Intho name of irector or relativedof snca which | not balng
promoter* /i of einployea of date held Inthe
promotar/dirattor name of the
i Aullding . s N A
|investment property Land B B . K
A oullding s b N "
PPE retired from active use and held for disposal [Land . . N
. Ieulldlnl . N "
Others K u - 3 s

Note : No valuation has been done of the Property, Plnnt and Equipment during the year
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RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES 10 THE FINALCIAL STATEMENTS-

Rs. in Thousands

Note

As at 31st As at 31st
e ASSETS March 2025 |March 2024
Non-current assets Rs Rs
4  Biological Assets 4011.03 3800.02
4011.03 3800
S |Particulars of Invetments Face |Noof | Asat3ist | Asat3ist
Value [Shares | March 2025 |March 2024
a) Equity instruments
Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted Fully Paid Up.
i) The Empire Jute Company Ltd (in Liquidation) 1000 12200 0.00 0.00
12200 Equity Sharers of Rs.10/~ each.
i) Hydrabad Vanaspati Ltd 1000 100 0.10 0.10
100 Equity Sharers of Rs.10/- each.
b) Un-Quoted Fully Paid Up.
Jalpaiguri Club Ltd 10.00 40 0.00 0.00
40 Equity Sharers of Rs.10/- each,
Assm Bengal Cereals Ltd 10.00 S0 0.05 0.05
50 Equity Sharers of Rs.10/- each.
¢) Investments in Debentures or Bonds
13-1/2% Registered Mortagage Debenture in Woodlands Hospital & 100.00 13 130 1.30
Medical Research Centre Ltd 13 Debenture of Rs.100/- each
" [TOTAL 1.45 1.45

Note : Aggregate market value of quoted investments are not available




= RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY UMITED

Rs. In ‘000
Asatdlst | Asastdist
Mo _ASSETS March 2025 | March 2024
Non-current assets Rs [
6 Other NonCorrent Assets
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Deposits onu|  een
Advances Recoverable 43894 43894
Fixed Deposit (Unconfirmed FOR s Rs. 88873/- with PNB Bynk) 51796.62 823203
5930880 11353.68
Note: Axed deposits are pladged with the Bank ogalinst Bank Guarnantee
Current assets
7 Inventories
(As taken, valued and certified by the management)
Green Leaf 0 0
Stock of Stores and Spare Pars 83%04.72 11013.06
Stock of Tea 91926.12 73301.60
10089084 B4314.65
| Nete: Mode of vatastion - Refer Accrunting Pelicy Note- 12
8 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Unsecured Considered Good 2001567 (  35503.2¢
Unsecured considered doubtiull 25393 15681
20274.60 36665.05
vi agein 3
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payme®
3103-2028
Less than 6 6 Month- 1 12years 23Years More tran 3
months year yearn Toal
) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good 16140.55] 259191 80254 0.00 @10t  2omissy
- . {dored daubtful 23353 5253
() Undisputed Trade .
(1) Disputed Trade Recetvabl idered good 000 9.0
(iv) Disputed Trads Receivabl idered doub 2% o,
TOTAL 1614018) 259191 802.54 0.00 73957 2077253




Particulars L

Ousundry for loliowng perods brom Sur 20 of y=—ed

33032724 5
[Gin Less than 6 lu:.:b-x 12 years 287 Va-: |
1 Undesoned Trade recevabies - Conadered goad vorosy  sism|  amm 5427¢) Dz
s52: =Lz
(6) Und Trde a l
0] Dispuied Yrade Recehables considered good 0 9
[v) Disputed Trade Receival o ! 7
— 1002 51537 17575.25] 542 75 BEZL SRS
9 Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
- in current sccounts (unconfirmed) 10750 7153
¥ Hand usz| g5
130L77 97150
10 Losns and Advances
Advance to Parties snm 33
Advance to Employees om p L]
Prepeid Expences 257.08 287
Capral Advances om o0
77810 65115
n; n ir X34
Type of Borrower Angumoflanor | Perterage 1o the 1ol Loars
Pr 0 9
Directors 0 )
s 0 [
[Related Parties [] )
[TotaL 0 0
11 Other curvent assets
Advance Income Tax 502205 235
Advance Agricultural Income Tax 5123 6123
Advance Goods and Service Tax 6122.15 350733
11211 44 18812
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RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINALCIAL ST ATEMENTS Rs. In Thousands
NoteNo (Equity Asat31stMarch 2025 | As at31st March 2024
, 12| Equity Share capltal No. Of Amount No. Of Amount
’ Shares Shares
3) Authorised Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 3000000  30000.00 3000000  30000.00
3000000  30000.00 3000000  30000.00
b) Issued , Subscribed & Paid Up 2600000 26000.00| 2600000  26000.00
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up at the beginning of the
period
2600000 26000.00 2600000  26000.00
©) Recondiliation of the number of Equity Shares Outstanding:
Particulars
Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year. 2600000  26000.00 2600000  26000.00
Issued during the period 0 0.00 0 0.00
Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year. 2600000  26000.00 2600000  26000.00
Particulars of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares at Balance Sheet date
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
Nos % of Nos % of Holding
Holding
Mr. Tansukh Rae Goel 540000 20.77% 540000 20.77%
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Goel 500000 19.23% 500000 19.23%
Mr. Shyam Kumar Goel S00000 19.23% $00000 19.23%
Mr. Raj Kumar Goel 500000 19.23% 500000 19.23%
Mrs. Narayani Devi Goel 450000 17.31% 450000 17.31%
The Company has only one class of share and each shareholder has a right of one vote per share at the General
meetings & is entitle to devidend and a right to percipate in surplus if any in case of winding up of the Company.
() Shares held by promoters at the end of the year [
No.of |%of total
S.NO.  |Promoter name shares |shares % Change during the year
1|MR. Tansukh Rae Goel 540000 20.77% Nil
2|Mr. Pradeep Kumar Goel 500000 19.23% Nil
3|Mr. Shyam Kumar Goel 500000 19.23% Nil
4|Goel Plantations Pvt Ltd 6100 0.23% NIl
Total 1546100 59.47%




13

Rs. In Thousands

Asat3ist  [Asat3ist
March 2025 |March 2024
Other Equity - -
8) Reserves and Surpiis
: ) Security Premiom Account
c:lhn commencement of the year 14344 14344
pital Reserve (Point No. 16 Note No. 33) 147658.99 0.00
At the close of the year u7w1'43 14344
Ba") Surplus {Profit &Loss Balance)
lance at the beginnin 29009
8 of the year
Profit /{loss) for the year 3:.:‘:7),:: 4191::;
Balance ot the close of the year 35818.78 | 33300.94
b) Other Comprehensive Income
At the commencement of the year (1.35) (1.35)
Increase/(decrease) in falr value of Investments 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income (1.35) (1.35)
Total Reserves asd Surplus 18361986 | 33443.03




RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED

- NOTES TO TUE FINALCIAL STATEMENTS Rs. in Thousands
ote Al | Assdint
No_[Nan-current llabilities Morch 2025 | Morch 204
s Rs
14 (o) Sorrowings
Secured
Term Loans fram MDFC Sank 0.00 000
(Secured by Mortgege of Land (including development snd
. )and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and
|guaranteed by Directors.
Hire Purchase Losn frem Sundersm Financelld 0.00 0.00
[ Secured against hypothecation of new excavalor machine
purchased inchuding second charge against rest of sssets)
Repayable In thirty flve equal monthly Instaflment.
,[Tracter Loan from HOFC Vehide Finance 0.00 0.00
[Secured sgainst hypothecation of Tractors |
Car Loan from HDFC car finsnce 0.00 0.00
[Secured against hypothecation of Car |
|Mahindra Finance L1d - Pick Up Van finance 0,00 0.00
|[Secured against hnolheullon of Pick Up Van )
Total| 0.00 0.00
15  Long Term Provision
Provision for Employee benefils 3810.85 2955.06
3010.8% 2955.06
16  Other Non Current Usbilties
Trade Payables 128301.19 13284401
Advance (rom customers 0.00 0.00
Housing and other Subsidy 1.99) 3.98
12530318 132840.79
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RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINALCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. In Thousands
Note No Asatalst | Asat3ist
March 2025 | March 2024
Current Liabilities
bV Sorrowings
Loan repayable on demand froms HOFC banks(cash credt) 2267450|  54869.66

(Secured by hypothecation of stodcs and receivables and creation of
equitabe mortgage by way of deposit of title deed of certain

L ble asserts as col | securtty

jAccount with Overdraft Fadility- secured with FD

0.00 5415
Total (A)]  22674.50] 5492381

Other financial labilitles
Current maturfties of long term Debts from HDFC banks 0 132327
Current maturities of long term Debts from HDFC car finance 0 0
Current maturities of long term Debts from HDFC Tractor finance 0 0|
Current maturities of long term Debts from Sundaram Finance 0 0
‘| Currem maturities of long term Debts from Mahindra car finance 0 0
3 Total (8) 0 1323.27
Grand Total (A + B) | 261a.50]  Ss6247.08




Trade payables
Trade payables

1331279

11066 86

13312.7]

11

Note: There are no dues to MSML, determinad to the extert such hrve been idertified on the basks of
Information avallable with the Company, &5 R 3152 March, 2024

TRADE PAYABLE AS ON 31-03-2024
Outstanding for following Deids “rom due date o
dHTeRE |
Paltiaie lessthan 1 . More e
12years [ 3yers R
year | 3veay
([IMSME 0 B ) J| R
(INOthers 13083.2 253.88 | NRECN
(1N} Disprsted dues - MSME 0 2 N3 9 N
(TV) Disputed dues - Others 0] 9] Q 3 3
I 13055.22 25388 AN | AN I
TRADE PAYABLE AS ON 31-03-2023
’ Quastanding for Qalkowing denads “o= A Jete &
azymestt
Particulars
Less than 1 W the
1 E =
Veit R veas ] N3 veany Syess | W
(iJVSME 9 9 d R N
I 1092288 27 \) NIRER
(I1)Others i ! RSN
(1)) Disputed dues - MSME J N N Q R
(IV) Disputed dues - Others 9 O NI Q R
10328839 1427 | AN DN




19 Other current llabiitties
Employeas & other dues 2737,00 3048.73
Labllity tor expenses 5025.85 5300.46,
TOS payable 8957 107.88
Statutory Dues 2486.43] 248694
10338.85]  10944.01
20 Other Provisions
Provision for Bonus and Exgratis 12251.27]  12402.76
1225127  12402.76




RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINALCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in Thousands

Note No |Particulars 31st March, | 31stMarch,
2025 2024
21 |Revenue from operations
Sale of Products (Net of GST)
Auction Centre Sale 124992.20 123820.47
Private Sales Within the State of W.6. 55798.97 39918.95
Private Sales of Tea Outside the State of W.B. 146398.31 128248.29
Sales to Specified Zones (Deemed Exports) 0.00 0.00
Tea Waste Sales Within W.8. 101.25 748.75
Tea Waste - Outside the state of W.5. 512.50 0.00
Total (A) 327808.23 292736.46
L] les and Other Sal
Within W.B Private Sale (Exempt Under GST) 11649.68 17549.59
Within W.B. Other sales (Taxable under GS) 599.15 0.00
Rire Charges 108.00 0.00
Total (B) 12356.83 17549.59
Total 340165.06 310286.05
22 Other Operating Revenue
Closing Stock of Biological Assets 4011.03 3800.02
Opening Stock of Blological Assets 3800.02 888.22
211.01 2911.80
a3 Other Income
Liability Written Back 0.00 15.18
Miscellaneoys Recelpts 1017 95.45
Interest on Bank deposite & Security Deposit with
WBSEDCLD : (TDSRs P.Y.Rs) 2937.19 526.58
Interest on (T refund 60.05 0.00
Profit on sales of Assets 925.00 0.00
Discount Recelved 464.43 183.07
Total 4396.84 820.28
24 PURCHASE OF MATERIALS FOR TRADING:
inventory at the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00
Purchase of Goods Exempted under GST 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
25 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Inventory at the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00
Purchase of Green Leaf 7154.89 1411356
Cost of Cultivation of Green Leaf from own garden 148274.54 19677843
inventory at the end of the year 0.00 0.00
Total 155429.83 130891.99
26 Manfacturing Expences
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts 9591.88 6386.01
Other expenses and labour charges 23339.87 5584.99
Power & Fuel 39282.68 50005.40
Repairs & Maint to Plant & Machinery, transport 3435.13 1975.77
Repairs to Bullding 5304.42 1112.36
80953.98 65064.53




27

(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks
Inventory at the beginning of the year

Stock of Tea 73301.60 73010.65
Inventory at the end of the year
Stock of Tea 91986.12 73301.60
(18684.52) (290.95)
28 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages 74028.65 71925.82
Bonus and Exgratia 18734.34 12562.58
Contribution to Provident and Other funds 8341.59 7971.87
Staff welfare expenses 828.14 254.86
101932.72 92715.13
29 Finance Costs
Interest onTerm Loan 47.67 326.85
Interest on Cash Credit 2393.91 4257.48
Others 14.81 263.77
2456.39 4848.10
30 Selling & Other Expences
Packing Materlals 1786.35 1384.75
Other selling and distribution expenses 3121.59 113.35
Brokerage and commission 3140.81 2704.79
Warehouse Charges 1026.45 1107.25
9075.20 5310.14
31 Depreciation and Amortasition expenses
Depreciation for the year 7322.84 6588.79
Less transfer from subsidy 199 1.99
7320.85 6586.80
32 Operating and other expenses
Lease Rent 113.58 113.58
Rates & Taxes 895.60 685.22
Insurance 460.64 455.94
Legal & Professesional Expenses 508.70 494,50
Other Administrative expenses 385.24 289.52
Electricity charges 0.00 0.00
Payment to Auditors:
Audit Fees 35.00 30,00
Tax Audit Fees 10.00 10.00
Special Audit Fee & Certificate Fee 6.00 6.00
Audit Fee In Other Capacity 12.00 12.00
Reimbursemet of Expenses 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 1321.86 2469.70
Prior Perod Items 22.00 0.00
Sundry Balance Written Off 0.00 0.00
Internal Audit Fee & Stock audit Fee 0.00 34.00
3770.62 4600.46




RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY LIMITED

NOTE: 33

NOVES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2025

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1, | Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
4) Bank Guarantees outstanding NIL 3508627
b) Assessed Agriculture Income Tax (1991-92) under appeal 52488 52488
<) Assessed Income Tax (FY 2016-17) under appeal, Order NIL NIL
Passed from ITAT
2. | Related Party Disclosure:
The following are the related party transactions undertaken by
the Company during this accounting year in terms of Ind As-24
— Related Party Disclosures issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accounts of India-
A) | Name of related party and nature of relationship
Key Management Personnel
. Mr. Tansukh Rae Goel - Director
. Mr. P.X. Goel - Director
. Mr. S. K Goel P Director
Associate Companies and concemns
. M/s. Goel Plantations Pvt. Ltd. - Common
Directors
. Dooars King Tea Pvt. Ltd. — Common Directors
. Goel Construction Co - Firm of Directors
. Anugrah Construction Pvt. Ltd
Relatives of Directors
. Pradecp Construction
. B. D. Traders
. Garden Suppliers
. Dooars Carriers
. Sonaal Goel
. Salonee Goel
HUF of Directors
. T.R. Goel & Others HUF
. P.K. Goel & Others HUF
. S.K. Goel & Others HUF
B) | Transactions with Related Parties
’ The name of the | Description of | Description of the nature | Volume of transactions
transacting  related | the relationship | of transactions
parties between  the
parties
31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Goel Plantations Pvi. | Associate Purchase 16432985 24978806
Lud. Company Sales NIL NIL
MJs. Goel Construction | Associate Firm Sales (Gross) 1798497 NIL
Co. Purchases (Gross) 6485137 17978689
Rent receipt (Gross) 127440 NIL
Works Contract (Gross) 18934099 NIL
B. D. Traders Relative of | Purchase (Gross) 175000 1350000
puecer h (Gross) NIL 666918
i elative of | Purchases (Gross 1
GiSgps ll;irector Contract works (Gross) 672500 83422
Brokerage (Gross) 20400 Nil




A VKL Goel, Munaglng | Nitig Fee of Meetiiga NIL NIl
b | Dhwene MO Remuneration 1200000 ) 1200000
Me XK Goel Direetor Purehases (Cirogs) MR0000 050425
— Shiting Foe ol Moetlngy | 80000 | 70000
Mr, TR, Gl Dinh Works Conmet ™~ NI, 193359
Purchases J2500 799050
- | Sltdng Voo oF Meetlugs _15000 70000
TR Goel & Others | TIUF ofDireotor | Panchases h NIL, 568787
(HUE) Conteaet Work 910200 169469
Interest NIL 8800
Sules 987500 NIL
S K. Goel & Others TVUF of Direotor | Durchase NIL 2499025
(HUF) Contraet Work 780800 139384
lnterest NIL 800
Sules 728650
P. K. Goel & Others | WUF of Director | Purchases NIL 1029479
(HUF) Conteaet Works 608979 639789
Interest NIL 8800
Snles 192500 NIL
Pradeep Construction | Relative of | Contract Works NIL 165817
Director Purchases NIL 200508
Docars king Tea Pwt Assovinte Co, Purchuse NIL 1890300
Lid. Sules NIL NIL
Sonaal Gozl Relative ol | Salary NIL 135000
Director Purchases NIL 55000
Salonee Goel Relative of | Contruct Works NIL 5000
. Director Sales NIL 7350
3. | Total amount paid/provided under the tollowing heads (including
those shown in the Profit & Loss Account under Notes 25,26 & 28
& others notes) which have been shown under different heads of
account amounts to:
. Salaries, Wages, Labour Charges & Bonus 145960917 128526969
. Stores Consumed (excluding capital items & .
fuels & including Tea Plants Traded) 115743620 80030570
. Power & Fuel 56248222 66141468
. Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 8341594 7971874
. Brokerage on Sales 3140806 2704791
J Gratuity Payments included in Staff Welfare 648242 159592
Expenses Note No. 28
4. | Repairs and Maintenance includes labour charges & other expenses
(Excluding stores consumed from own stores)
¢ Building Repairs 5304415 258974
¢« Machinery Repairs/Transport 3425125 1279200
¢ QOther Repairs 31770
‘5. | Statutory Auditors Remuneration includes Expenses
*  Auditors Fees 35000 30000
* Tax Audit Fees / FORM 29 B 10000 10000
+  Certification Fees Including Limited Review Fee 18000 18000
* Expenses 0 0
Other Auditors Fee
Stock audit fee of from Bank 12000 24000
* Sundry Certificates Fee 0
« Internal Audit Fee 10000 10000
6. | The Company is dealing only in one product (Tea) and there are no
other business segments. g
SL Particulars [ 31.03.2025 T 31.03:2024




Rs. In
‘000

Rs. In
‘000

7.0

2) Capital Management:

The Company's palicy focuses on maintenance of stable and strong
capital basc %0 as 1o maintain investor's creditors and market conditions
o sustain future developments and growth of the business in order to
maintain the capital base of the company as a going concern . The

return on capital as well as dividend to the shareholders of the
company.

Ca;?ilal includes issued capital and all Equity Reserve and Debits
obligation to third party. Company monitor capital on following
bearing ratio.

Total Equity

209619.86

59443.02

Total Debts

22674.50

54923.82

Debit Equity Ratio

0.11

0.92

b) Pinancial Risk Management :

The Company’s financial risk management is integral part of how to
plan and execute its business strategies and its risk policies are
monitored by the Board. The Companies activities to expose to
varieties of risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks
accordingly frame its policies to minimize the adverse effects.

. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meets its obligation t a
financial loss of the company. The company has its policies to limits its
exposure to credit risk arising from outstanding receivables from the
customers, review its payment terms, credit limits of each customers
periodically.

. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risks are the risks that the company may face its obligation to
timely re payments its credit fatalities

The Company closely monitors its cash flow and ensuring timely

collections of its receivables as well as ~ movements of inventories.

The table below summarized the maturity profile of its liabilities

¢ Pavable on demand/with in a vear :-

. Borrowing — Secured

22674.52

54923.82

. Trade Payables

13312.70

11066.86

. Other Financial Liabilities —~ Current Maturities

0

1323.26

TOTAL -(A)

35987.22

67313.94

» Payableon I to 5 years:-

. Borrowed Secured

0

0

. Borrowed Unsecured

0

0

. Trade Payables

125303.18

132848.79

TOTAL - (B)

125303.18

132848.79

TOTAL - (A+B)

161290.40

200162.73

. Market Risk

Market Risk is the risks of fluctuation of fair value of its products,
Since company's business is agriculture in nature, adverse weather
condition, demand/supply gap and interest rate may effects its cash
flow, so company monitors and changes its exposures as well as sales

straggles.

Interest Risk
The Company'’s interests are at fixed rate. Details are given below.

Secured loan- vehicle

Level -3

Level - 3




Unsecured loan

Fair value hierarchy

F.air Val}:e of the financial Instruments is classified in various fair value
hicrarchies based on the following three levels:

Level 1 : Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

!.evel 2: Fair Value of financial instruments not traded in active market
is qetcnnining valuation methods and rely observable market data /
entity specific estimates,

Level 3 : Inputs for the assets and liabilitics that are not based on
observable market data.

There were no transfers between Level | , Level 2 and Level 3 during
the year

*  The following table Present the fair value hierarchy of
assets and liabilities

Financial Assets (A)

Investment in Equity Instruments measured at FYTOCI 1.45 145
Financial Liabilities (B) s —
Net (A-B) 1.45 1.45
* Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants and stock of tea
measured at Fair Value
Biological Assets 4011.03 3800.02
Stock of Tea 91986.12 | 73306.60
TOTAL 95997.12 | 77106.62
GRAND TOTAL (1+2) 95998.60 | 77108.07
8 | Earnings Per Share (EPS) Rs. Rs.
Profit after tax as per Profit & Loss A/c 2517842 | 4291917
No. of Equity Shares (F/V of Rs. 10/- each) 2600000 | 2600000
Basic & Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 0.97 1.65
9 | Deferred Tax Liabilities / Assets subject to consideration of prudence
are recognized and carried forward only when there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient taxable income will be available against which
such Deferred Tax Liabilities / Assets can be adjusted.
10 | Income Tax: In view of carried forward losses, no provision has been
made in Accounts on account of Income Tax.
11. | The Contracts or arrangements in which all the directors are interested
are placed before the annual general meeting for approval by the
shareholders.
12. | Confirmations of balances from Trade receivable, Trade Payables, and
Bank Balances and FD with Banks are pending ‘
13. | Leasehold Land has been registered during the previous year and
company has started charging to Statement of Profit and Loss account
from the Financial Year 2019-2020. Period of lease is 33 Years approx.
from 08/12/2011] till 08/10/2044.
The Company has made detailed assessments of the recoverability and

carrying values of its assets Comprising properties, plant and
equipment, inventories, receivables and other current assets as at the
balance sheet date and on the basis of evaluation, has concluded that
no material adjustments are required in the financial statements.
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17. | Corresponding, figures for the previous year have boen rearransed ' —
and re-orouped, wherever found necessan. ‘
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors F&RNWM SO
Charterad Accvrztaes
: . Firm Rem. N Janase
RANICHERRA TEA CO. LTD. TR L.
L gt ] <Pt St
’ Director g o JW/Q AN 2T
Shyam Kumar Goel Pradecp km;ar Goel Dipskar Riswas
Managing Director =
Director k in N
Din - 00838816) (Din - 0083SSTY) Membendip N AR

Place : Kolkats  Dated 29" May 2025




BOTE %0, 34

RATIO'S:
RANICHERRA TEA COMPANY UMITED
F.Y. 2024-202¢
A) OTE TO CURRENT ASSETS: Details of securities of Current Asset due to borrowing from bank
S Mo. Mortth & Yezr |orthdy Peturn Winether Monthdy Return |Reason for
Submitted 2rein agreememt of material
boo's of A/C discependes
L
| 1 Apr-23 YES YEs NA
2] May-23 YES YeS NA
3l e YES YES NA
4 hd-23 YES YES NA
5|  Awg-23 YES YES NA
5] Sep23 YES YES NA
7l oa-23 3 YES NA
8l tov23 YES YES NA
9| Dec-23 YES YES NA
19|  jan-24 YES YES MA
11|  Feb-24 YES YES NA
12|  Mar-24 YES YES NA
B) RATIO'S: Rs. In ' 000
(a) Current Ratio = Current Assets
Cument Liabiligjes
RATIO =
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
CURRENT ASSETS:
NOTE HO. 7 100890.84 84314.66
HOTE NO. 8 202746 36665.05
NOTE NO. 9 1301.77 991§
NOTE NO. 10 7781 661.16
NOTE NO. 11 11211.44 7438.72
TOTAL 132456.75]  130071.09]
CURRENT LIABILITIES
NOTENO. 17 2267450 56247.08
NOTE NO. 18 13312.70 11056.86
NOTE NO. 19 10338.85 10344.01
NOTE NO. 20 12251.27 12402.76
[ 58577.32| 90660.71]
CURRENT RATIO : 23 1.43 0.87
Note: Increase in current assets is higher and decrease in Current Liabilities
(b) Debt. Equity Ratio= Debt f

Equity




(c)

(d)

{e) .

IGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 20232024 [
TOTAL DEBTS:
NOTE NO. 14 0 0
NOTE NO. 17 22674.5 5624708
TOTAL [ 22674.5 56247.08]
TOTAL EQUITY: l
NOTE NO. 12 26000.00 26000.00
NOTENO. 13 183619.86 33443.03
ToTAL L 209619.862]  59443.032|
OEBT. EQUITY RATIO= 0.11 0.95 -0.84
Note: Decrease In Debts and Increase in Equity
Debt. Service Coverage Ratio= Income before Interest & Tax
Total Debt,
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
INCOME BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX:
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 2517.84 4291.93
Add: Depreciation 7320.85 6586.80
ADD: TAXES 0.00 0.00
ADD: FINANCE COST NOTE NO. 29 2456.39 4848.10
PBIT | 12295.08| 15726.83|
TOTAL DEBT: l 22674.5] 56247.08)
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO: 0.54 0.28 0.26

Note : Debt servicing ratio increased due to derease in debt and increase on profit

Return on Equity Ratio= Profit After Tax

Average Equity Share Capital

CHANGES IN RATIOS

2024-2025 2023-2024
PROFIT AFTER TAX 2517.84 4291.93
AVERAGE [TY SHARE CAPITAL:
1) OPENING EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 59443.03 53626.76
1) CLOSING EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 209619.86 59443.03
Average EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 134531.45 56534.89
(OPENING + CLOSING ) / 2
RETURN ON EQUITY RATIO: 0.02 0.08 .0.06

Note: Return on Equity increased due to increase in Net Profit available to Shareholders

Inventory Trunover Ratio= Cost of Goods Sold
Average Inventory

2024-2025

CHANGES IN RATIOS

2023-2024

Cost of Goods Sold:




{8)

Opening Inventory Note No, 7 NA314.66 69000,12
Add: Cost of Matorlals consumand:2% 199429,13 110801.99
Add: Cost of Goods purchased 24 0 0
Add: Cost of Manulacture Mote 26 180952.98 63064.5)
Add: Salnrles and wages - Diroct 101932.72 9271513
| 42263119 357671,77]
Loss: Closing Inventory - 7 100890.84 84314.66
Cost of Goods Sold [ 174038] 27335711
VE . (OPE " :
OPENING 84314.66 69000.12
CLOSING 100890.84 84314.66
AVERAGE INVENTORY 92602.75 76657.39
INVENTORY TURNOVER RATIO: 3.47 3.57 -0.1

Note: Fall In Inventory Turnover ratlo s due \o decraasa In Inventory and Incraase I

turnover due to markel situations

Trade Recelvable Turnover Rotlos Turnovar l.a, Nat Cradit Salos

Averoge Trade recelvoble

CHANGES IN RATIOS

2024-2025 2023-2024
Turnover (Net Credit Sales)
Total Turnover 340165.06 310286.05
Less: Cash Sales 1527.54 1448.23
Net credit soles | 338637.52| 308837.82|
Average Trade Reelvable | 28469.825 | 33082.61|
Ratlo: 11.89 9.34 255

Note: Increase receivales compared to previous year due to slow collections

Trade Payable Turnover Ratlo= Net Credit Purchoses
Averoge Trade Payobles
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
Credit Purchases
Opening Stock of Stores 13001.30 9639.52
Purchases {Stores and Capltal Goods) 173135.11 150929,44
Total | 186136.1] 160568.96]
Less Closing Stock of Stores 11013.06 i 13001.30
NET CREDIT PURCHASE | 175123.35] 147567.66
verage Account Payables; )
Opening 9501.01 5500.15
Closing 11066.87 9501.01
Average =(Opening + Closing) / 2 | 10283.94| 7500.58

77 avlal iy
\S\)\‘\ }"5




(h)

U}

)

(k)

9]
D)

RATIO: 17.03

19.67

-2.65

Note: Changes are due to lower Increase In trade payables than Increase in credit purchases

Net Capital Turnover Ratios

Sales
Working Capital
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
Sales 340165.06 310286.05
Working Capltal 75879.43 39410.38
Ratlo: 448 7.87 -3.39
Note: Increase In Current assets and decrease in Current Lalbllities
Net Profit Ratio= Net Profit 0.00
Sales
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
Net Profit ’ 2517.84 4291.93
Sales 340165.06 310286.05
Ratio: 0.74% 1.38% -0.64%
NOTE : Increase in Earning before Interest and tax
Return on Capital Employed= Earning before interest & Tax
Capital Employed
CHANGES IN RATIOS
2024-2025 2023-2024
EBIT 497423 9140.03
Capital Employed 232294.36 115690.11
Ratio: 0.021 0.079 -0.058
Note : Increase in Net Profit and sales
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Net Worth 209619.86 59443.03
Total Debt 22674.5 56247.08
Deferred Tax 0 0
| 232294.36 11569011
Return on Investments= Nil Nil
RELATION WITH STRUCK OF COMPANIES No Relation

Compliance with approved Scheme (s) of Arrangements:

Not Applicable







